
1001 E. Ninth St., Building B, Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2416 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

 
 

Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Hearing Board 
Meeting Notice and Agenda 

Members Wednesday, January 30, 2019 
Ronald J. Anderson, P.E., Chair 4:00 p.m. 
Matthew Buehler  
Vonnie Fundin  
Nick Vestbie, P.E. Washoe County Administration Complex, Building B 
Matt Smith - Alternate Health District South Conference Room 
Ray Pezonella, P.E - Alternate 1001 East Ninth Street 
 Reno, NV 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no action will be taken. 
4:00 p.m. 
1. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 
2. *Pledge of Allegiance 

3. *Public Comment 
Any person is invited to speak on any item on or off the agenda during this period. Action 
may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter is 
specifically listed on an agenda as an action item. 

4. Approval of Agenda – (For possible action) 
January 30, 2019 

5. Approval of Draft Minutes – (For possible action) 
November 20, 2018 

6. Public Hearing to consider an appeal to the Health District’s decision to require the 
relocation of a residential onsite sewage disposal system pursuant to Section 120.040 of the 
Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Sewage, Wastewater, 
and Sanitation. (Held over from November 20th, 2018 Meeting)– (For possible action) 
Staff Representative: David Kelly 

Ron and Denise Jahn 
3285 Maranatha Road  
Reno, Nevada  
Assessor’s Parcel Number 046-031-10 

7. Public Hearing to determine whether or not to recommend approval to the District Board of 
Health for a variance for APN 038-084-05 sections 040.100, 100.020 and 100.090 based on 
percolation rates for native soils being substantially lower than acceptable for a conventional 
onsite sewage disposal system of the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of 
Health Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation. (Held over from November 20th, 
2018 Meeting) – (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  David Kelly 



 
January 30, 2019 Sewage Wastewater and Sanitation Hearing Board Meeting Agenda   Page 2 of 3 

Dante and Joinece Frasca 
630 Hill Lane 
Verdi, Nevada 89439  
Assessor’s Parcel Number 038-084-05 

8. Public Hearing to determine whether or not to recommend approval to the District Board of 
Health for a variance for APN 017-320-20 section 040.100 Table 2 Setback to a Watercourse 
of the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Sewage, 
Wastewater, and Sanitation. – (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  Latricia Lord 

Robert Togliatti 
19445 Togliatti Way 
Reno, Nevada 89439  
Assessor’s Parcel Number 017-320-20 

9. Public Hearing to determine whether or not to recommend approval to the District Board of 
Health for a variance for APN 030-204-07 section 040.100 Table 1 Minimum Lot Size 
According to Slope Over Disposal Area of the Regulations of the Washoe County District 
Board of Health Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation. – (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  David Kelly 

 Mark & Kathleen Olsen 
 5025 Pleasant View Drive 
 Sparks, NV 89434 

10. Public Hearing to request a standing meeting date for SWS Board. – (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  David Kelly 

11. Public Hearing to determine whether or not to recommend approval to the District Board of 
Health of a proposed change in Section 120.075 of the Washoe County Health District 
Regulations Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation regarding the minimum acreage 
for second dwellings. – (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  David Kelly 

12. *Public Comment 
Any person is invited to speak on any item on or off the agenda during this period. Action 
may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter is 
specifically listed on an agenda as an action item. 

13. Adjournment – (For possible action) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Possible Changes to Agenda Order and Timing: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other 
items, withdrawn from the agenda, moved to the agenda of another later meeting, moved to or from the Consent section, or 
they may be voted on in a block. Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may 
be heard later. Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are voted on as a block and will not be read or 
considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent agenda. 

Special Accommodations: The Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board Meetings are accessible to the disabled. 
Disabled members of the public who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify 
Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe County Health District, 1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, 
NV 89512, or by calling 775.328.2415, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

Public Comment: During the “Public Comment” items, anyone may speak pertaining to any matter either on or off the 
agenda, to include items to be heard on consent. For the remainder of the agenda, public comment will only be heard 
during items that are not marked with an asterisk (*). Any public comment for hearing items will be heard before action is 
taken on the item and must be about the specific item being considered by the Board. In order to speak during any public 



 
January 30, 2019 Sewage Wastewater and Sanitation Hearing Board Meeting Agenda   Page 3 of 3 

comment, each speaker must fill out a “Request to Speak” form and/or submit comments for the record to the Recording 
Secretary. Public comment and presentations for individual agenda items are limited as follows: fifteen minutes each for 
staff and appellant presentations, five minutes for a speaker representing a group, and three minutes for individual 
speakers unless extended by questions from the Board or by action of the Chair. 

Response to Public Comment: The Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board can deliberate or take action only if a matter 
has been listed on an agenda properly posted prior to the meeting. During the public comment period, speakers may address 
matters listed or not listed on the published agenda. The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to 
public comments by the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board. However, responses from the Board members to 
unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without notice to the public. On the advice of legal 
counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board will consider, 
Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda. The Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board may do 
this either during the public comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or 
Issues for future Agendas.” 

Posting of Agenda; Location of Website: 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 

Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Downtown Reno Library, 301 S. Center St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV 
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 

How to Get Copies of Agenda and Support Materials: Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe 
County Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, Nevada.  Ms. Laura Rogers, Administrative Secretary to the 
District Board of Health is the person designated by the Washoe County District Board of Health to respond to 
requests for supporting materials. Ms. Rogers is located at the Washoe County Health District and may be reached by 
telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by email at lrogers@washoecounty.us. Supporting materials are also available at the 
Washoe County Health District Website   www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the requirements of NRS 241.020. 

 
 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:lrogers@washoecounty.us.
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

SEWAGE, WASTEWATER, AND SANITATION HEARING BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES 

Members Tuesday, November 20, 2018 
Ronald J. Anderson, P.E., Chair 6:00 p.m. 
Matthew Buehler Washoe County Administration Complex 
Vonnie Fundin Health District South Conference Room 
Nick Vestbie, P.E. 1001 East Ninth Street 
Matt Smith – Alternate 
Ray Pezonella, P.E. - Alternate 

Reno, NV 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

6:00 p.m. 
1. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

Chair Anderson called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. once a quorum was present.

The following members and staff were present:

Members present: Ronald J. Anderson, P.E., Chair
Matthew Buehler 
Vonnie Fundin 

Members absent: Nick Vestbie, P.E. 

Staff present: Leslie Admirand, DA 
Jim English 
Dave Kelly 
Latricia Lord 

Ms. Valentin verified a quorum was present. 
2. *Pledge of Allegiance

Those present pledged allegiance to the flag.

3. *Public Comment

As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Anderson closed the public comment
period. 
4. Approval of Agenda

November 20, 2018

Chair Anderson informed he would need to abstain from item number eight and that Mr. 
Fundin requested to abstain on agenda item number six due to conflict of interest, and that no 
quorum would be available. 

Mr. Buehler moved to accept the agenda of the November 20, 2018 Sewage, Wastewater, & 
Sanitation Hearing Board (SWS Hearing Board) regular meeting as written, postponing agenda 

SWS AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



 
November 20, 2018 Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board Minutes   Page 2 of 4 

items number six and eight until another meeting can be scheduled.  Mr. Fundin seconded the 
motion which was approved three in favor and none against. 

5. Approval of Draft Minutes 
October 10, 2018 

Chair Anderson commented he did not have the draft minutes in his hard copy agenda 
packet. 

Mr. Kelly apologized for the oversight and relayed Laura sent the draft minutes with the 
electronic packet they received.  Chair Anderson requested highlights. 

DDA Admirand stated the minutes needed to be approved at this meeting.   
Chair Anderson requested highlights.  DDA Admirand provided a verbal summary review of 

the minutes for the board members.   
Mr. Fundin moved to accept the minutes of the October 10, 2018 Sewage, Wastewater, & 

Sanitation Board (SWS Board) regular meeting as written.  Mr. Buehler seconded the motion 
which was approved three in favor and none against. 

Mr. Kelly stated he will be contacting the Board to determine the next available date for a 
quorum to hear items number 6 and 8. 

6. Public Hearing to consider an appeal to the Health District’s decision to require the 
relocation of a residential onsite sewage disposal system pursuant to Section 120.040 of the 
Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Sewage, Wastewater, 
and Sanitation. – (Item postponed to the next scheduled SWS Hearing Board Meeting) 
Staff Representative: Latricia Lord 

7. Public Hearing to determine whether or not to recommend approval to the District Board of 
Health for a variance for APN 084-200-80 of Sections 040.007 regarding the minimum 
setback to a domestic well from a residential onsite sewage disposal system as required in 
Section 040.007 of the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health 
Governing Well Construction. 
Staff Representative: David Kelly 

Jerry Turley  
240 School Street  
Wadsworth, Nevada 89442  
Assessor’s Parcel Number 084-200-80  

Mr. Kelly, Senior Environmental Health Specialist for septics and wells, thanked the board 
for meeting tonight as it is a difficult month to make time available.  He informed this item is 
important to go before the District Board of Health (DBOH) at their next DBOH Meeting 
because of their out of water situation.  He informed of a discussion with Chair Anderson before 
the meeting who had opined the plan was a bit inadequate for his standards to address the items 
in placing the well.  Mr. Kelly stated he believed he would be able to answer any questions to the 
satisfaction of the Board in regards to their concerns. 

Mr. Kelly noted this is one of the Verdi and Wadsworth properties he spoke to the board 
about last month, this being one of the Wadsworth properties he had mentioned. 

Mr. Kelly informed the property owner had begun discussing the need to place a well on his 
property about three months ago.  He stated the owner previously had been feeding off the well 
of a neighboring property.  Mr. Kelly informed he wasn’t sure of the details, but his 
understanding was that the quality and flow declined and ultimately they did not have access to a 
satisfactory source of water and therefore needs to drill a well on his property. 

Mr. Kelly stated EHS staff had looked at the property and discovered that, where the septic 



 
November 20, 2018 Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board Minutes   Page 3 of 4 

system is, there was wasn’t a location to place a well on the property that would meet the one 
hundred foot setback requirement.  He informed the one location that would meet the setback 
requirements sits directly under power lines so was not an option. 

When speaking with the power company and the drillers to determine whether power could 
be temporarily disconnected to allow for drilling, it was his understanding this approach wasn’t 
an option.  He informed the farthest the drilling company could get from the septic system was 
ninety-five feet from the septic tank.  Mr. Kelly referred the Board to the parcel map/plot map as 
the drawing would relay more information. 

While the depiction of the septic system on the plot plan provided is not clear, Mr. Kelly 
informed the location of the septic tank had been field verified over a year.  He stated staff is 
comfortable that a new well can be placed ninety-five feet from the septic system, informing that 
the leach field is a single run straight from the tank, not three wavy lines as depicted in the map. 

Mr. Kelly informed there are two issues on this property: 

1.  The placement of the well will only be ninety-five feet from the septic tank.  They 
cannot meet the one hundred foot setback requirement. 

2.  The well placement will also not meet the minimum one hundred foot setback to the 
required future septic leach field repair area.  Based on staff analysis, the proposed well 
location will potentially only be able to maintain an eighty foot setback to future leach 
fields. 

Staff has reviewed previous variances and found that the normal condition of approval 
acceptable by the SWS Hearing Board for approval of a reduced setback variance is an increased 
seal depth.  During the last SWS Hearing Board meeting, Mr. Fundin (board member and 
licensed well driller) also discussed his belief that setbacks could be horizontal as well as 
diagonal.  Based on his opinion, staff recommends that the conditions of approval include that 
the well will be set as far from the current and future septic systems as possible and that the seal 
be increased by one foot in depth for every foot of setback that cannot be met.  The property 
already requires a minimum of one hundred foot seal, so based on the estimated setback of 
eighty feet to the future repair, the seal would be increased to one hundred twenty feet. 

Mr. Kelly reviewed the Findings of Fact and Conditions of Approval as outlined in the Staff 
Report. 

Mr. Fundin opined that a one foot increase in the seal depth for each foot of setback that 
could not be achieved per regulations may be too little.  He pointed out that, depending on how 
much a setback was missed, a one to one ratio may not meet the intent of achieving the one 
hundred foot distance from the septic system.  He opined a two to one ratio may be more 
appropriate and a minimum of one hundred foot seals should be the standard for all properties, 
noting that seals are not an expensive protective measure. 

Mr. Kelly acknowledged the concern and stated that the Board had the right to increase the 
conditions of approval.  He indicated that staff recommendations were based on two 
considerations.  First, that because the property already requires a one hundred foot seal, the 
hypotenuse in this case would exceed the minimum one hundred foot horizontal setback.  
Second, staff knows that drillers also face other concerns, such as drilling to specific depths to 
capture zones of water, and that excessive seals may conflict with these issues.  Therefore, the 
intent was to not require more sealing than absolutely necessary. 

Mr. Fundin stated that with the property already requiring a one hundred foot seal, the one to 
one ratio would be acceptable for this property, but would not suffice in all instances. 

Mr. Buehler inquired about soil conditions to which Mr. Kelly said it was unknown.  Mr. 
Anderson asked Mr. Fundin if seals ever go down into groundwater levels.  Mr. Fundin said yes, 



 
November 20, 2018 Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board Minutes   Page 4 of 4 

occasionally seals are placed below groundwater levels, particularly if you are attempting to seal 
off contaminated zones.  He said that the drilling industry is more concerned with protecting the 
void that they created with boring and that placing the seal is a good protective measure to 
prevent potential contamination from finding a route to groundwater through the void. 

Mr. Anderson stated that he would defer to Mr. Fundin’s expertise.  Mr. Fundin again said 
that the one to one ratio was acceptable in this case but for future cases, if the property has a fifty 
foot minimum seal, the ratio should be 2 feet for every foot of setback missed. 

Mr. Anderson opined that he would like to see better plot maps in the future. Mr. Kelly 
agreed and stated that one of the concerns that caused staff to begin exploring the potential for a 
“blanket variance” during the last SWS meeting was that, in these small property situations, 
money is a huge issue for the property owners.  They often times need to keep costs very low, 
meaning that they are doing their own plot maps and may not have their drillers to assist them 
with technical details and recommendations. 

Mr. Buehler moved to support staff and present to the District Board of Health for 
approval Variance Case #1-18W (Jerry Turley) to allow the approval of the well permit 
H18-0228WELL with less than the required one hundred foot setback to proposed well 
location, subject to the conditions of approval indicated in the staff report.  Chair 
Anderson seconded the motion which was approved three in favor and none against.   
8. Public Hearing to determine whether or not to recommend approval to the District Board of 

Health for a variance for APN 038-084-05 sections 040.100, 100.020 and 100.090 based on 
percolation rates for native soils being substantially lower than acceptable for a conventional 
onsite sewage disposal system of the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of 
Health Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation. – (Item postponed to the next 
scheduled SWS Hearing Board Meeting) 
Staff Representative:  Dave Kelly 

9. *Public Comment 
As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Anderson closed the public comment 
period. 

10. Adjournment 
At 6:40 p.m., Chair Anderson moved to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Buehler seconded the 

motion which was approved three in favor and none against. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Respectfully submitted, 

  

James English, Environmental Health Specialist Supervisor 
Secretary to the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board 

 

  

Paula Valentin, Administrative Assistant I 
Recording  



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street Building B   I   Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Office: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD ___________ 
DHO _________ 
DA ___________ 
Risk __________ 

STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  November 20, 2018 

TO: Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing Advisory Board 

FROM: James English, EHS Supervisor  
775-328-2610, jenglish@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider appeal of Health District’s decision to require relocation of 
an existing septic system as the system is currently not located on the subject property. 

SUMMARY 

This staff report summarizes the Environmental Health Services (EHS) Division’s review of the 
submitted appeal for your recommendation regarding EHS staff requiring the relocation of an existing 
septic system in order to be utilized for a new home. The system in dispute is not fully located on the 
subject property of 3285 Maranatha Road and portions of the system are located within two separate 
easements and on two adjoining properties.  

PREVIOUS ACTION 

In order to receive approval for building permit number WBLD 18-106696, the applicant submitted a 
revised plan that proposed the system will be fully relocated onto the subject property and within the 
prescribed easement. That plan was approved on October 12, 2018. The homeowners are requesting 
an appeal of the decision requiring the septic system be relocated on to the subject property. If the 
appeal is denied, the Certificate of Occupancy for the new home will be contingent upon relocating 
the system onto the property.  

BACKGROUND 

On April 3, 2018 Residential Designer, Jason Warfield contacted David Kelly, Senior Environmental 
Health Specialist via email requesting clarification on the subject property. The email stated the 
original house burned down in the 90’s and the septic tank and system have been kept intact since but 
are located within an easement on the neighboring property. The email further stated the septic system 
had been located, the tank pumped and the contractor performing the work stated the system works. 
Mr. Warfield stated the homeowners would like to use the system for a new home and wanted to 
verify there would be no issues with our department. Mr. Kelly responded with the following options:  

1. If the system is existing and functional, it may be tied into, provided,
a. It is sized for the building and the new building will not violate a setback to the

system.
b. It is located on the property or in a legal easement.  EHS would require proof of that in

the form of some sort of legal document.
c. If ANY modification of the system is required for the building, the entire system needs

to be brought up to code.

SWS AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 CW



Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: November 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 

2. If the system is located off of the property, then it needs to be relocated onto the property as 
part of the project. 

3. If there are any other code issues, but the system is on the property 
a. We require designation of two fully code compliant repairs. 
b. If sizing information is not available for the repairs, we reserve the right to require a 

test trench and/or percolation test to determine the appropriate sizing prior to 
approving the property build out. 

On August 2, 2018, Washoe County Building Permit application WBLD18-106696 was received by 
EHS. EHS staff conducted a lot check of the property and it was determined the plot plan did not 
accurately reflect the correct length and location of the existing septic system, as located by Waters 
Vacuum Truck Service. It also indicated the septic tank was located partially outside of the prescribed 
easement and the leach line was also located outside the prescribed easement for the property.  The 
plan was placed in corrections on August 22, 2018 until the following items were addressed:  

1. The plot plan shall reflect the accurate length of the existing leach field. 
2. The septic system must be relocated onto the subject property since it was not completely 

within the prescribed easement.    

In order to verify the septic location, the property was surveyed and an accurate plot was created 
(Reference Sheet A1.0 as provided by the homeowner). As the plot indicates, the septic system is 
located in two separate easements and possibly two separate properties, none of which meet WCHD 
regulations. In order to receive approval for Building Permit WBLD18-106696 a revised plot plan 
was received on October 10, 2018 showing the existing system will be relocated onto the subject 
property and within the prescribed easement for Parcel F. This plan was approved on October 12, 
2018.  

The Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and 
Sanitation (regulations) section 120.040 states that an on-site sewage disposal system shall be located 
entirely upon the parcel upon which the building it serves is located. Current procedure for EHS staff 
in the event of a property build-out is if the septic system is off the property and not in a legal 
easement, the system must be relocated back onto the property. This procedure helps to clean up 
previous incorrect installations and ensures adequate space is available for proper sewage disposal for 
both current and future repairs. If the build out is a fire re-build, EHS procedures will allow for the 
hook up to the existing system as long as the building footprint remains the same. If the property is 
redeveloped, normal septic installation procedures are followed.  

In this situation, the fire occurred over 20 years ago and the building footprint is not the same, 
therefore EHS is not treating this as a fire re-build, but as new development.  All new development 
requires septic systems to comply with 120.040 and have the septic system fully located on the 
property is serves. This septic system should be relocated in order to meet WCHD Sewage, 
Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing Regulations.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on information presented, staff recommends: The Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing 
Advisory Board deny the appeal request and uphold EHS staff decision to require relocation of the 
septic system onto the property.  

 



Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: November 20, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 
 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “move to deny the 
appeal of the Health District’s requirement to relocate the system onto 3285 Maranatha Road as part 
of WBLD18-106696.”  

 











































ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street Building B   I   Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Office: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD ___________ 
DHO _________ 
DA ___________ 
Risk __________ 

STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  November 20, 2018 

TO: Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing Advisory Board 

FROM: James English, EHS Supervisor  
775-328-2610, jenglish@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Variance Case #1-18S; Variance to Multiple Portions of Regulations, including 
Setbacks to Irrigations Ditches, Placement of a Septic Field in Soils with Outside of 
the Allowable Percolation Rates, and Installation of an Alternative Treatment System, 
For the Purpose of Installing a Repair, Parcel 038-084-05, 630 Hill Lane, Verdi, NV  

Recommendation 

Staff is offering a neutral recommendation to the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation (SWS) 
Hearing Board in the presented Variance Case #1-18S (Dante Frasca) to allow the approval of 
the septic repair permit (permit number to be determined) with less than the required 100 foot (or 
25 foot) setback to neighboring irrigation ditches, allowing a septic to be placed in soils outside 
of the allowable percolation rates and installing an alternative treatment system.   

Background 

In June and July of 2018, EHS was contacted by Waters Septic Company regarding the need for 
a repair leach field at 630 Hill Lane.  Over the course of July and August, discussions continued 
regarding the potentially failing septic system.  

The original system was records consisted only of a location, with no actual design.  Therefore, a 
new test trench was asked for to determine the appropriate design criteria and groundwater 
levels.  Maximum probable seasonal groundwater was called at 4 feet below ground surface. 
Percolation testing was conducted by licensed engineer Ron Anderson.  Percolation rates were 
determined to be very slow, well outside of allowable Washoe County Regulations.  The Washoe 
County Health District Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing 
Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation (regulations) section 100.090 only allow for engineered 
septic systems to be installed in soils with percolation rates as slow as 90 minutes per inch and 
the soils were tested to be 480 minutes per inch. 

In August of 2018, an initial proposal was submitted by the property owner's engineer.  After 
review, EHS informed Mr. Anderson that there the proposal did not meet the required irrigation 
ditch setbacks (Regulations Section 040.100 - 100 feet or 25’ if sealed to prevent infiltration and 
exfiltration of water) and would need a variance if they could not be met.  That proposal also 
included an alternative treatment method (section 060.100 requires alternative treatment devices 
to go to SWS Board) and attempted to utilize sand as a substitute for fill material.  Both of those 
items also fall outside of EHS standard plan review allowances and provided cause for a 
submittal to the SWS Board for a variance. 

SWS AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 CW



Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: November 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 
The new plan was submitted with a variance application on November 5.  It proposes an 
alternative secondary treatment system along with disinfection.  The treatment system has 
NSF/ANSI 40 and 245 certifications, standards which verify their ability to meet EPA secondary 
effluent treatment requirements for municipal treatment facilities for nitrogen reduction and 
other contaminants.  The goal is to produce effluent that will not pose a risk to public health to 
allow for a discharge method of subsurface drip irrigation.  In theory, should the system function 
correctly and the effluent be properly cleaned, it would create the basis for allowing a reduced 
setback to irrigation ditches, as the public health threat posed by the discharge would be 
essentially eliminated. 

The sizing of the system is based on the percolation rates that were found and the style of 
discharge is based on literature research provided by the design engineer.  The discharge fields 
would be rotated to allow for rest periods and the existing sand filter would be utilized as a 
backup field.   

The proposal also includes sealing the irrigation ditch for a long portion of the property.  Section 
040.100 does allow for a reduced setback to lined or sealed irrigation ditches.  The proposed 
sealing would protect the system to some extent, but the system would still not meet the required 
25’ setbacks from the sealed portion or the 100’ setbacks from the non-sealed portion.  

The primary concern of EHS regarding the proposal is that the basis of the reduced setbacks is 
relies on the proper functioning of the treatment system.  Washoe County does not have the 
resources to continually monitor these types of systems or the property owners and for this 
reason has typically only supported passive systems that do not require this level of maintenance.  
The onus would fall on the homeowner for the upkeep.  While the proposal calls for a mandatory 
3 year maintenance contract, EHS views the property for its entire life.  There are also the 
ancillary potential concerns about what would happen if the company that produces the treatment 
goes out of business, and/or if there is availability of someone with sufficient knowledge to 
maintain and certify the systems functionality.  If for some reason the system was not kept up, 
the Health District would have no way of knowing and/or correcting the issue. 

With these concerns, EHS must maintain a neutral position and recommend that the Board put in 
place stringent conditions with an understanding that there will be no actual regulatory oversight 
or enforcement that the conditions will be met on an ongoing basis. 

Findings of Fact 

 1. Will the proposed variance result in contamination of water to the extent it cannot be 
used for its existing or expected use? 

Reply:  If the system functions as intended, then the effluent discharge to groundwater 
should be clean and not pose a threat to groundwater contamination.  That would be 
reliant on the property owner (and future property owners) maintaining the system as 
intended and conducting the required sampling.  No regulatory oversight of this would be 
possible at this time as EHS does not have the resources nor the regulatory structure in 
place to ensure that the requirements were met. 

 2. Will the proposed variance pose a threat to public health? 

Reply:  There are two primary ways that sewage can pose a threat to public health, direct 
exposure and groundwater contamination in areas with domestic wells.  Sewage 



Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: November 20, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 
 

discharged underground should not allow for direct exposure as long as the field 
functions, the same as any onsite sewage disposal system.  As indicated in question #1, 
the system should also not cause a groundwater contamination issue as long as the system 
is maintained and functions properly. 

 3. Are there other reasonable alternatives? 

Reply:  Washoe County regulations allow for a passive sand filtration system to be 
installed in soils between 60-90 minutes per inch and only a 2 foot vertical setback to 
groundwater.  With the percolation rates of the soils, the other option would be removal 
of soils and replacement with fill materials.  Engineers have designed systems to meet 
these requirements; while records do not exist, the best guess is that the original system 
was designed this way.  EHS would accept a standard sand filter with fill and an 
appropriate design on this property.  The comparable cost to the homeowner is unknown.   

Conditions of Approval 

• A maintenance contract is required with record keeping requirements.  A minimum of 
annual maintenance and certification is required with records kept for a minimum of 5 
years.  Records must be made available to WCHD upon request.   

• All instances system non-function must be reported to WCHD for review and repaired 
immediately.  In the event of failure to maintain or lack of system function, WCHD may 
require sampling and/or impose restrictions on the property based on the functionality of 
the treatment system, up to and including additional repair. 

• All conditions of approval must be recorded to the deed of the property with language 
that does not allow for the removal from the deed without Health District approval or 
connection to municipal sewer. 

Possible Motion 

Should the SWS Hearing Board wish to approve the variance application, a possible motion 
would be “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of  
Variance Case #1-18S (Dante Frasca) to allow the approval of a septic repair permit as proposed, 
including all recommended conditions.” 

The SWS Board may also formulate their own motion or request additional information from the 
applicant if desired. 

 .   

 
 































































ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Phone: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD ___________ 
DHO _________ 
DA ___________ 
Risk __________ 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 30, 2019 

TO: Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing Advisory Board 

FROM: James English, EHS Supervisor  
775-328-2610, jenglish@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Variance Case #1-19S; Variance to Section 040.100 Table 2 Setback to a 
Watercourse, Parcel 017-320-20, 19445 Togliatti Way, Reno, NV 

SUMMARY 
This staff report summarizes the Environmental Health Services Division’s (EHS) review of the 
submitted variance application for your decision to recommend or deny approval to the District Board 
of Health (DBOH) a variance for APN 017-320-20 which is owned by Robert Angelo Togliatti.  The 
variance requests a reduced setback to a watercourse by way of encasing the building sewer line 
with concrete within an approximate 110’ long zone to extend past the required 50’ setback on 
each side of a seasonal irrigation ditch. 

Previous Action 
There has been no previous action with this variance request. A Washoe County Building Department 
permit application (WBLD18-1085360) was received by EHS on December 19, 2018.  The parcel in 
question has been developed with a domestic well.  

Background 
Environmental Health Services staff has worked with the engineer to find the best possible solution to 
design an onsite sewage disposal system (OSDS) for this property. The property is five acres, is 
served by a private well and has a seasonal irrigation ditch flowing through it from south to north 
when water is present. During the design phase to build on the property and place an OSDS, it was 
determined there are few options for meeting all applicable setbacks to the irrigation ditch required in 
the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Sewage, Wastewater and 
Sanitation (SWS) and also meet the setbacks to the private well.  

Section 040.100 of the SWS Regulations requires building sewer lines meet a minimum 50’ 
horizontal setback to watercourses. Section 040.100 also requires the septic tank, dosing tank and the 
disposal trench(s) meet a minimum 100’ horizontal setback to watercourses. Section 010.305 of the 
SWS Regulations defines a watercourse to include an irrigation ditch.  

The property owner contracted with Black Eagle Consulting, Inc. to design an OSDS to be the most 
protective of the public and environmental health for the parcel.  The proposed design has the building 
sewer line encased with concrete within an approximate 110’ long zone on each side of the seasonal 
irrigation ditch. The building sewer line will then be buried below the irrigation ditch.  All other 

SWS AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 CW

mailto:jenglish@washoecounty.us


Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: January 30, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 
 
portions of the OSDS are proposed to be located outside the 100’ setback to the irrigation ditch as 
required in Section 040.100. 

Staff has been on site to validate the proposed OSDS layout. Based on field observations it is noted 
the proposed design layout matches the property in question.  

 

Findings of Fact 
The Board must consider the following when making a recommendation on this variance to the 
DBOH:  

1. Will the proposed variance result in contamination of water to the extent it cannot be 
used for its existing or expected use? 

Reply:  If the system functions as intended, then there should be not effluent discharge to 
irrigation water or groundwater and should not pose a threat to groundwater 
contamination.  If the solid effluent line crossing the irrigation ditch fails, it could 
possibly contaminate the water in the irrigation ditch with raw sewage until such time as 
the flow is stopped.   

2. Will the proposed variance pose a threat to public health? 

Reply:  There are two primary ways that sewage can pose a threat to public health, direct 
exposure via surface and groundwater contamination in areas with domestic wells. Direct 
exposure in this situation would most likely occur if the concrete encasement is 
compromised. EHS feels this is unlikely as it will be buried and not easily accessible.   
As indicated in question #1, the system should also not cause a groundwater 
contamination issue as long as the system is maintained and functions properly. 

3. Are there other reasonable alternatives? 

Reply:  In order to maintain all applicable setbacks and not cross the irrigation ditch the 
applicant could perform one of the following alternatives:  

a. Construct the house on the western end of the property rather than the eastern end. 
This design is likely not feasible due to egress issues from the surrounding 
residential streets.     

b. Relocate the well and utilize that space to construct the sand filter bed.  
c. Reroute the irrigation ditch to the western or eastern end of the property. This 

option is also likely not feasible as the irrigation ditch crosses Togliatti way into 
neighboring properties.  

The comparable cost to the homeowner for the above alternatives is unknown.   

Conditions of Approval 
1. Any instances of system non-function must be reported to WCHD for review and shall be 

repaired immediately.  In the event of failure to maintain or lack of system function, 
WCHD may require sampling and/or impose restrictions on the property based on the 
functionality of the treatment system, up to and including additional repair. 



Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: January 30, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 
 

2. Require recording of the variance to the parcel to ensure proper public records 
notification in the event the property is sold to any other person or entity.  Recording may 
not be removed without Health District approval.  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation (SWS) Hearing Board support the 
presented Variance Case #1-19S (Angelo Togliatti) to allow the approval of portions of a septic 
system (WBLD18-108536) with less than the required 50’ setback to a watercourse.  The 
variance requests a reduced setback to a watercourse by way of encasing the building sewer line 
with concrete within an approximate 110’ long zone to extend past the required 50’ setback on 
each side of a seasonal irrigation ditch. 

 
Possible Motion 
Should the SWS Hearing Board wish to approve the variance application, the four possible 
motions would be:  

1. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of  
Variance Case #1-19S (Robert Angelo Togliatti) to allow the approval of a septic system 
as proposed, including all recommended conditions”; OR 

2. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of  
Variance Case #1-19S (Robert Angelo Togliatti) to allow the approval of a septic system 
as proposed, without conditions”; OR 

3. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of  
Variance Case #1-19S (Robert Angelo Togliatti) to allow the approval of a septic system 
as proposed, with the following conditions (list conditions)”; OR 

4. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a denial of Variance Case #1-19S 
(Robert Angelo Togliatti).  

The SWS Board may also formulate their own motion or request additional information from the 
applicant if desired. 

 

 





















































ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Phone: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD ___________ 
DHO _________ 
DA ___________ 
Risk __________ 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 30, 2019 

TO: Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing Advisory Board 

FROM: James English, EHS Supervisor  
775-328-2610, jenglish@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Variance Case #2-19S; Variance to Section 040.100 Table 1 Minimum Lot Size 
According to Slope Over Disposal Area, Parcel 030-204-07, 5025 Pleasant View Dr., 
Washoe County, NV 

SUMMARY 
This staff report summarizes the Environmental Health Services Division’s (EHS) review of the 
submitted variance application for your decision to recommend or deny approval to the District Board 
of Health (DBOH) a variance for APN 030-204-07 which is owned by Mark and Kathleen Olsen.  
The variance requests a second dwelling on a parcel that is only sized for one dwelling. 

Previous Action 
There has been no previous action with this variance request.  The parcel in question will be served by 
an onsite well. 

Background 
The variance correctly identifies the Washoe County Health District (WCHD) Regulations Governing 
Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation (regulations) required minimum acreage on the property as 1.5 
acres per septic system (see Table 1, Minimum Lot Size According to Slope Over Disposal Area). 
The property owner wishes to construct two separate dwellings, one with three (3) bedrooms and one 
with a single bedroom.  Section 120.075 requires that additional dwellings have their own septic 
system.  The lot in question is 1.63 acres and by regulations would require three (3) acres for two (2) 
dwellings. 

The regulations would not prohibit a single dwelling with four (4) bedrooms, or even more, provided 
the septic system is sized correctly.  The basic premise of the variance request is that because the 
property is able to support a much larger single system, two separate dwellings with a total number of 
four (4) bedrooms will not create an adverse impact.   

The proposal provides for a main dwelling of three (3) bedrooms and an accessory dwelling of one (1) 
bedroom, each with a 1000 gallon system.  The regulations require that each system is sized to a 
minimum of 1000 gallons, or able to support up to three (3) bedrooms, even if the existing dwelling is 
smaller than three (3) bedrooms.  Unless the Board places conditions on the variance, the Health 
District would allow expansion of the accessory dwelling up to three (3) bedrooms with the proposed 
system.   

SWS AGENDA ITEM NO. 9
CW

mailto:jenglish@washoecounty.us


Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: January 30, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Staff has been on site to validate the proposed OSDS layout. Outside of a couple of minor design 
concerns that can be worked out during the Building Permit process, based on field observations it is 
believed that the proposed design layout matches the property and that the systems can be placed on-
site meeting all setbacks.  WCHD would allow a single system of this size on the property; this 
variance essentially allows for the system to be split in order to allow for two dwellings.  

Findings of Fact 
The Board must consider the following when making a recommendation on this variance to the 
DBOH:  

1. Will the proposed variance result in contamination of water to the extent it cannot be 
used for its existing or expected use? 

Reply:  The proposed systems would be able to meet all relevant setbacks that a normal 
system would and so should not pose any additional threat to groundwater.  Since the 
total system size between the two dwellings would be allowed for a single dwelling, it is 
not expected that any excessive sewage disposal or concentration that would be any 
different from a single dwelling would occur. 

2. Will the proposed variance pose a threat to public health? 

Reply:  There are two primary ways that sewage can pose a threat to public health, direct 
exposure via surface and groundwater contamination in areas with domestic wells. All 
sewage would be discharged underground preventing direct exposure and as all setbacks 
and design requirements are met, no increased risk of groundwater contamination is 
expected. 

3. Are there other reasonable alternatives? 

Reply:  WCHD regulations would require a minimum of three (3) acres on this property 
in order to allow for two dwellings.  There is no alternative to placing the second 
dwelling other than the variance. 

Conditions of Approval 

1. WCHD is not recommending any conditions of approval at this time, as the overall 
sewage disposal is less than expected from that of a 6 bedrooms house and system.  In 
these situations in the past, SWS Boards have deemed it appropriate to include 
restrictions on the total allowable bedrooms for either the primary or secondary dwelling.  
If the Board does determine that to be an appropriate measure, any conditions they set 
should be required to be recorded to the title, not be removed without Health District 
approval. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation (SWS) Hearing Board support the 
presented Variance Case #2-19S (Mark & Kathleen Olsen) to allow the approval of a secondary 
dwelling and septic system, with or without any bedroom restrictions that they may feel 
appropriate. 



Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: January 30, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Possible Motion 
Should the SWS Hearing Board wish to approve the variance application, the three possible 
motions would be:  

1. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of  
Variance Case #2-19S (Mark & Kathleen Olsen) to allow the approval of a septic system 
as proposed, including all recommended conditions”; OR 

2. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of  
Variance Case #2-19S (Mark & Kathleen Olsen) to allow the approval of a septic system 
as proposed, without conditions”; OR 

3. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of  
Variance Case #2-19S (Mark & Kathleen Olsen) to allow the approval of a septic system 
as proposed, with the following conditions (list conditions)”; OR 

4. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a denial of Variance care #2-19S (Mark 
& Kathleen Olsen).  

The SWS Board may also formulate their own motion or request additional information from the 
applicant if desired. 

 

 

























ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Phone: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD ___________ 
DHO _________ 
DA ___________ 
Risk __________ 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 30, 2019 

TO: Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing Advisory Board 

FROM: James English, EHS Supervisor  
775-328-2610, jenglish@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Request for Standing Meeting for SWS Board 

SUMMARY 
Environmental Health Services (EHS) is requesting a return to a standing meeting date for the 
Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Board (SWS) due to the increased amount of activity and 
difficulty obtaining a quorum.   

Previous Action 
There has been no previous action on this item since the original change to move from a standing 
meeting date. 

Background 
The Washoe County Health District Regulations Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation 
(regulations) section 170.030 require that the SWS meet once a monthly unless there are no pressing 
matters to attend to.  Until recently, a date was set each month and the meeting was scheduled to 
attend.  Each month, the Board was contacted and asked if they would like to cancel the meeting if no 
items for consideration presented themselves.  Due to the lack of activity, about three (3) years ago, 
the standing meeting was cancelled and the Board was only contacted when agenda items arose. 

As activity has increased, including increased use of the SWS, this has presented problems.  There is 
difficulty in finding a day that works for all five (5) Board members’ schedules.  This has resulted in 
delays to customer appeals and variance requests.  EHS staff feels that returning to a standing meeting 
date that can be cancelled if there are no issues to be heard would benefit the expedient hearing of 
issues.  The SWS could set a date that works for all Board members and then members could expect 
to attend unless notified otherwise. 

If the Board chooses to set the meeting sometime during the first week of the month, it would be 
conducive to getting their recommendations to the Board of Health as quickly as possible to resolve 
any issues for clients. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the (SWS) Hearing Board vote to set a specific date each month that will act 
as the standing date for Board meetings.  Staff recommendation is that it be held during the first 
week of each month to allow recommendations to get to the Board of Health in a timely manner. 

SWS AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 CW

mailto:jenglish@washoecounty.us


Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: January 30, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 
 

Possible Motion 
Should the SWS Hearing Board wish to vote to set a standing meeting date, a possible motion 
would be: 

1. “Move to set the XX (date, specific day such as first Tuesday) of each month as a set date 
for the SWS Board meetings.  Meetings to be cancelled if not needed.” 

The SWS Board may also formulate their own motion or request additional information if desired. 



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Phone: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD ___________ 
DHO _________ 
DA ___________ 
Risk __________ 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 30, 2019 

TO: Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing Advisory Board 

FROM: James English, EHS Supervisor  
775-328-2610, jenglish@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Proposed Change in Section 120.075 of the Washoe County Health District 
Regulations Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation regarding the minimum 
acreage for second dwellings. 

SUMMARY 
Environmental Health Services Division (EHS) is proposing a change in the Washoe County Health 
District Regulations Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation (regulations) regarding the 
minimum acreage for second dwellings.  Specifically, the proposal modifies section 120.075, 
which addresses the septic requirements for second dwellings and guest quarters. 

Previous Action 
There has been no previous action with this proposal. 

Background 
Sections 040.005 – 040.030 are used to determine the minimum requirements for creating parcels to 
be served by septic.  The section requiring a minimum of one (1) acre has been in place since March 
of 1991 (section 040.015) and the most recent parceling requirements require a minimum of one (1) 
acre, with an increase to five (5) acres after the creation of the first four (4) lots from existing lots.  For 
many years, EHS has applied in practice the current parceling requirements of a minimum of one (1) 
acre per septic (section 040.030) to second dwelling requests, meaning that second dwellings were not 
allowed on parcels smaller than two (2) acres.   

An appeal regarding this practice was heard by the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board (SWS) 
on October 10, 2018.  EHS argued that the specific section in question was at best an oversight during 
the re-writing of the regulations and that the intent was to move to a one (1) acre minimum; the 
argument was made that many regulations include historic references but current code is what is 
applied to all new construction.  The SWS Board disagreed and felt that the language within the 
regulations was clear and the practice of requiring the one (1) acre minimum was not a correct 
interpretation.  The SWS Board recommended to the Board of Health that EHS discontinue the 
practice and apply the minimum lot size per dwelling that was required when the parcel was created. 
The Board of Health agreed with the SWS Board recommendation, and EHS has subsequently 
changed its practice. 

The purpose of the steadily increasing minimum required acreage for parcels served by septic systems 
over time is to ensure that on-site sewage systems are able to adequately treat released sewage prior to 

SWS AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 CW

mailto:jenglish@washoecounty.us


Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: January 30, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 
 
impacting groundwater and have space for repair area in the event of failure of the main system.  As 
population concentration increases, the amount of sewage released per acre increases, and the risk of 
contaminated groundwater is elevated.   

In addition, while basic septic technology has not changed dramatically, old style septic systems such 
as seepage pits are not considered adequate treatment and are no longer allowed.  New style trench 
systems require a lot more area, which means that properties need more space to be able to meet 
setbacks and provide for adequate sewage disposal.  EHS is more frequently seeing older parcels 
without a lot of space unable to meet the basic septic requirements when their original system goes 
into failure.  This can lead to properties being forced into variance situations, and increases risk of 
repair system installation that could cause risks to both water resources and/or public exposure. 

Based on the public health concerns and needs for adequate space for sewage disposal, EHS is 
proposing to amend the section of regulation that led to the confusion to return to the original intent 
since 1991 of requiring a minimum of one (1) acre per septic system/dwelling.  The attached proposed 
regulation update institutes that minimum requirement.  It also cleans up the section in its entirety, 
addressing some other items that needed updating to current practices, including: 

• Getting EHS out of determining what structures are by eliminating the definition of a dwelling 
and/or structure.  As a matter of practice, we have already eliminated this and defer to the 
Planning department, which has been a relief for customers who are not fighting two 
potentially disagreeing agencies and also simplifies the plan review process.  The proposed 
edits codifies that Health will accept the Planning Department’s designation. 

• Cleaning up the terminology used to match Planning.  The term of guest quarters is something 
that was essentially exclusive to EHS regulations and again caused confusion from 
customers.  Planning simply designates buildings as structures or dwellings and these 
proposed edits capture that. 

• Eliminating language that specifies the minimum size of a septic system as 1,000 gallons for 
second dwellings as it is redundant to section 060.005 which requires that the minimum sizing 
for any dwelling is 1,000 gallons.  By replacing the specific sizing language in this section and 
simply referring back to the required minimum sizing, it eliminates the need to modify 
multiple sections in the event that our sizing requirements change in the future. 

EHS feels that these proposed changes will codify the original intent and also make this particular 
section much simpler for customers to understand. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation (SWS) Hearing Board recommend 
approval to the District Board of Health of the proposed change in Section 120.075 of the Washoe 
County Health District Regulations Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation regarding the 
minimum acreage for second dwellings. 

Possible Motion 
Should the SWS Hearing Board wish to recommend approval to the Board of Health, three 
possible motions would be:  



Subject: Public Hearing, SWS Board 
Date: January 30, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 
 

1. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of the  
proposed change in Section 120.075 of the Washoe County Health District Regulations 
Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation regarding the minimum acreage for 
second dwellings”, as presented; OR 

2. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of the   
proposed change in Section 120.075 of the Washoe County Health District Regulations 
Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation regarding the minimum acreage for 
second dwellings”, with the following conditions (list conditions) ; OR 

3. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for denial of the 
proposed change in Section 120.075 of the Washoe County Health District Regulations 
Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation regarding the minimum acreage for 
second dwellings. 

The SWS Board may also formulate their own motion or request additional information from EHS if 
desired. 

 

 



120.075 

The construction of additional buildings to be used as living quarters as permitted by 
building and zoning codes may be served by an on-site sewage disposal system according 
to the following: 

 
1. If the additional building is designated as a separate single family dwelling, an 

individual septic tank, in addition to the one for the existing single family dwelling is 
required. This separate dwelling can have its own individual disposal field or it can 
use a disposal field in common with the existing dwelling as long as the combined 
field is sized according to the total volume of the tanks. An additional building shall 
be defined as a “dwelling” if it has a bathroom(s) and/or toilets, living area, and a 
kitchen. A “kitchen” is defined as an area that may be used for food preparation and 
which includes any combination of four (4) of the following items unless otherwise 
determined by the Health Authority: 

 
a. A large or compartmental sink. 

 
b. Counters and cabinets suitable for food preparation and storage. 

 
c. Electrical connection and adequate space for a refrigerator. 

 
d. Hood or venting apparatus. 

e. Natural gas stub and/or 220 volt outlet. 
 

f. Stubbed-in plumbing for a future kitchen. 
 

dwellings, as designated by the appropriate Planning Department are required to 
be served by their own septic system.  The system must be designed to the 
minimum size required by these regulations. 
 
Separate dwellings may occupy one parcel of land provided that the lot size is at 
least equal to the number of dwellings times the minimum lot size required by 
sections 040.005 through 040.020 contains a minimum of 1 acre per dwelling. For 
example, two dwellings utilizing an onsite well require a minimum of two (2) 
acres if located in an area where ground slope is less than 5%. 

 
2. An Additional structures, as designated by the appropriate Planning Department,  

building without a kitchen is designated as “guest quarters” and may be served by 
an on-site septic system according to the following guidelines: 

 
a. Guest quarters Structures can connect to the septic tank and disposal field 

serving the main dwelling provided that the tank and disposal field is sized 
for the total number of bedrooms between both structures. 

 
b. Guest quarters Structures can have their own septic system provided that the 

lot size contains a minimum of 1 acre per septic system.  The minimum size of 
the septic tank is one thousand (1,000) gallons and the disposal field is sized 
according to the tank volume and number of bedrooms. The system must be 
designed to the minimum size required by these regulations. 



 
 

The addition of guest quarters will require conformance with sections 040.005 through 
040.020 for only one (1) dwelling. In the above example, if the second living area 
did not have a kitchen, only a one (1) acre parcel would be required. 

 


	Agenda
	5. Approval of Draft Minutes
	November 20, 2018

	6. Public Hearing - Jahn
	Staff Report

	7. Public Hearing - Frasca
	Staff Report

	8. Public Hearing - Togliatti
	Staff Report

	9. Public Hearing - Olsen
	Staff Report

	10. Public Hearing - Standing Meeting Dates
	Staff Report

	11. Public Hearing - Regulations
	Staff Report





